# GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION FEDERAL ACQUISITION SERVICE AUTHORIZED FEDERAL SUPPLY SCHEDULE PRICE LIST

**SCHEDULE MAS:** Multiple Award Schedule

FEDERAL SUPPLY SCHEDULE: Security and Protection – Security Services



Excelsior Defense, Inc. 2660 5<sup>th</sup> Ave. N. Saint Petersburg, FL 33713-6901 P. 727-527-9600 • F. 727-520-1199

Contract Number: 47QSWA21D006G

Contract period: July 23, 2021 through July 22, 2026

Pricelist Version: PO-0001 dated July 23, 2021

**DUNS**: 049425098

WEB: <a href="https://www.excelsiordefense.com">https://www.excelsiordefense.com</a>

**Business size**: Service Disabled, Veteran-Owned, Small

Business (SDVOSB)

## Contact for Contract Administration:

Kris Halverson, Managing Director, FSO Email -khalverson@excelsiordefense.com

On-line access to contract ordering information, terms and conditions, up-to-date pricing, and the option to create an electronic delivery order is available through **GSA** Advantage!, a menu-driven database system. The INTERNET address for **GSA** Advantage! is <a href="http://www.gsaadvantage.gov">http://www.gsaadvantage.gov</a>

For more information on ordering from Federal Supply Schedules click on the FSS Schedules button at <a href="http://www.gsa.gov/schedules-ordering">http://www.gsa.gov/schedules-ordering</a>

## Table of Contents

1a.	TABLE OF AWARDED SPECIAL ITEM NUMBERS (SINs):
1b.	LOWEST PRICED MODEL NUMBER AND PRICE FOR EACH SIN:
1c.	HOURLY RATES: (Services Only):
2.	MAXIMUM ORDER:
3.	MINIMUM ORDER:
4.	GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE:
5.	POINT(S) OF PRODUCTION:
6.	DISCOUNT FROM LIST PRICES:
7.	QUANTITY DISCOUNT(S):
8.	PROMPT PAYMENT TERMS:
9.	FOREIGN ITEMS:
10a.	TIME OF DELIVERY:
10b.	EXPEDITED DELIVERY:
10c.	OVERNIGHT AND 2-DAY DELIVERY:
10d.	URGENT REQUIREMENTS:
11.	FOB POINT:
12a.	ORDERING ADDRESS:
12b.	ORDERING PROCEDURES:
13.	PAYMENT ADDRESS:
14.	WARRANTY PROVISION:
15.	EXPORT PACKING CHARGES:
16.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RENTAL, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR (IF APPLICABLE):
17.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INSTALLATION (IF APPLICABLE):
18a.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF REPAIR PARTS INDICATING DATE OF PARTS PRICE LISTS AND ANY DISCOUNTS FROM LIST PRICES (IF AVAILABLE):
18b.	TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ANY OTHER SERVICES (IF APPLICABLE):
19.	LIST OF SERVICE AND DISTRIBUTION POINTS (IF APPLICABLE):
20.	LIST OF PARTICIPATING DEALERS (IF APPLICABLE):
21.	PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE (IF APPLICABLE):
22a.	SPECIAL ATTRIBUTES SUCH AS ENVIRONMENTAL ATTRIBUTES
22b.	SECTION 508 COMPLIANCE FOR EIT:
23.	UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER (UEI) NUMBER:
24.	NOTIFICATION REGARDING REGISTRATION IN SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM) DATABASE:



## **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

## **HISTORY**

Established in 1999, Excelsior Defense has been proudly supplying government and private companies throughout the United States with uniformed security officer services. Since our inception, we have worked hard to develop an excellent reputation in providing the maximum security possible at mutually agreed, competitive billing rates. Together with our, two wholly owned, sister companies (Meridian Quest Investigative Group) which conducts employee background investigations and (Defense Academics), a certified security officer school: we can provide a customized solution specific to your needs. Our Company, founded and managed by a former U.S. Marine Embassy Security Officer, has evolved into a modern and highly effective security company. At Excelsior Defense, our customers can expect a close personal relationship designed to ensure total satisfaction of our service. We designate key executive staff to implement a customer approved program and closely monitor its progress to ensure continued customer approval!

#### **MANPOWER**





With many qualified people to draw from, we believe in carefully selecting personnel best qualified for each assignment. Adhering to that philosophy, we place the finest officers at our customer properties and have developed enough manpower to interchange our people if needed. Our officers are dressed in police fashioned uniforms or blazers. Proper weather equipment, communications and personal protection is also assigned for their use. Our inspectors make frequent unscheduled stops at the service region of our customer property(s) to evaluate the level of performance and personal appearance of our security officers.

We are an Equal Opportunity Employer and have an Affirmative Action Plan, Drug Policy, and Background Check Policy in place. We do not discriminate against any applicant or employee for any reason other than his or her ability to perform their duties. We have security officers who have been Excelsior Defense employees for many years and a team of the finest officers for high profile accounts.

#### **TRAINING**

We view each applicant with the thought in mind of placement in one of our many security categories: banks, government agencies, public utilities, hotels, apartments, condominiums, retail stores, museums, office buildings, strip centers, malls and ports. Our training program and requirements are tailored for each category. Our training exceeds every state mandated training law concerning the security profession. Our personnel are given instructions on all facets of their duties. Their training begins with the basics in security and continues through the handling of emergencies and various other specializations. All of our employees undergo basic training: however, many jobs require additional training. When this is necessary, we provide it. We insist training with on-going classroom and internet sessions.

Our field inspectors periodically test the security officers on their retention of customer written "Guard Orders". If the security officer cannot demonstrate retention of the information, the officer is scheduled for a training session. We continue the process until we are satisfied the security officer is capable of protecting our customers and has complete knowledge of their customer site relative to his or her job.

When particular duties do not apply to the job site at which the security officer is stationed, he or she is given general instruction. Any security officer, who cannot successfully complete training required for his or her job site is transferred or relieved.

#### **SUPERVISION**

We maintain a system of twenty-four hour supervision, seven days a week. The training of our new personnel is just one function of the supervisor's complex duties. Each of our supervisors, before being advanced to that position, must be thoroughly familiar with the intricacies of each account. This will enable him/her to respond in to assisting the security officers with any problem they may have. These Supervisors are on the road for most of their shift, and when they are not responding to calls for assistance, they are making unscheduled, routine checks of



the security officers. During these routine, unscheduled checks, they meet with the Contract Representatives and Site Supervisors to determine what Excelsior Defense, Inc. can do to improve the security program. The other prime factor for being at the job site is to check the appearance and level of performance of the security officer on duty. In addition to our staff of supervisors, we have a client support staff of a Managing Director, Sales Managers Operation Managers, Payroll Personnel, Accounting and Accounts Payable Departments. Some department heads are provided with administrative and clerical assistance.

Thank you for allowing Excelsior Defense the opportunity to present our qualifications to serve your requirements. Our goal is to provide you with a comprehensive, professional and affordable security service customized to meet your needs. Please visit our web page for a detailed description of our services under GSA Catalog, our staff will be happy to expand upon any item.



#### 1a. TABLE OF AWARDED SPECIAL ITEM NUMBERS (SINS):

SIN	Recovery	Description
561612	561612RC	Protective Service Occupations Includes protective service occupations to support on-site security operations, such as security guards, alarm monitors, baggage inspectors, corrections and court security officers, etc.
OLM	OLMRC	Order-Level Materials (OLMs)

### 1b. LOWEST PRICED MODEL NUMBER AND PRICE FOR EACH SIN:

Not Applicable. Services Only.

## 1c. HOURLY RATES: (Services Only):

	Year 1	Year 2	Year 3	Year 4	Year 5
Labor Category Title	GSA Net Rate				
Guard I**	\$30.75	\$31.37	\$31.99	\$32.63	\$33.29
Guard II**	\$36.27	\$37.00	\$37.74	\$38.49	\$39.26
Supervisor**	\$54.90	\$56.00	\$57.12	\$58.26	\$59.42
Project Manager**	\$60.24	\$61.44	\$62.67	\$63.93	\$65.21

SCLS Eligible Contract Labor Category	SCLS Equivalent Code - Title	WD Number
Guard I	27101 -Guard I	2015-4281
Guard II	27102 - Guard II	2015-4281
Supervisor	27132 - Police Officer II	2015-4281
Project Manager	27102 - Guard II	2015-4281

\*\* The Service Contract Labor Standards, formerly the Service Contract Act (SCA), apply to this contract and it includes SCLS applicable labor categories. Labor categories and fixed price services marked with a (\*\*) in this pricelist are based on the U.S. Department of Labor Wage Determination Number(s) identified in the SCLS/SCA matrix. The prices awarded are in line with the geographic scope of the contract (i.e. nationwide).

#### GUARD I

General Duties and Responsibilities: Provides deterrence against the commission of wrongful acts committed against client employees, visitors, guests, their persons and property and property of the client; aids in discovery of security violations and early reporting of emergencies; provides directions, and informational assistance to employees, visitors and guests. Works from a fixed post and/or conducts roving patrols of facilities, grounds, parking lots, garages, and out buildings, etc. Remains alert to security risks and exposures and reports security, medical or other incidents requiring a public safety response and conducts general observation for fire or other hazardous conditions. Monitors intrusion detection, personal security devices, CCTV, fire and water pressure systems; screens employees, guests and visitors entering assigned area; controls, issues and records visitor passes; maintains duty logs, and records visitor ingress and egress. Prepares written reports detailing security related activity and incidents and is direct report to first-line supervisor; testifies in administrative hearings, civil and criminal proceedings; this position intervenes only when minimal action to safeguard persons or property is appropriate. Unarmed Guard I job-descriptions are customized to meet the requirements of each assignment, exigent circumstances related thereto, and are subject to client approval.

**Minimum Educational, Experiential Requirements:** Graduate of an accredited high school or a Certificate of Completion of General Education Development requirements; and meet one of the

following experience/education requirements: three (3) years of security experience within past five years; or three (3) years civilian or military work experience; or attendance at an institution of higher learning earning an Associate's Degree, or a minimum of sixty (60) semester hours of college coursework in any field of study; or a graduate of an accredited local, county, state, military or federal law enforcement academy; or any reasonable combination of the foregoing, except when exempted by GSA Federal Protective Services rules or law; and completion of state or local sanctioned basic security guard/officer training program meeting licensing requirements and issuance; Must be 21 years of age or older; and must successfully complete GSA Federal Protective Services required screening and training, and all training required by the company; the candidate for this job-category must demonstrate maturity, sound judgment, excellent character, work-ethic, job-completion skills, and dependability.

**Citizenship:** United States of America or, where excepted and approved by the Contracting Officer Representative, legal resident aliens with proper INS-issued work permits.

#### GUARD II

General Duties and Responsibilities: Provides deterrence against the commission of wrongful acts committed against client employees, visitors, guests, their persons and property and property of the client; aids in discovery of security violations and early reporting of emergencies; provides directions, and informational assistance to employees, visitors and guests. Works from a fixed post and/or conducts roving patrols of facilities, grounds, parking lots, garages, and out buildings, etc. Remains alert to security risks and exposures and reports security, medical or other incidents requiring a public safety response and conducts general observation for fire or other hazardous conditions. Monitors intrusion detection, personal security devices, CCTV, fire and water pressure systems; screens employees, guests and visitors entering assigned area; controls, issues and records visitor passes; maintains duty logs, and records visitor ingress and egress. Prepares written reports detailing security related activity and incidents and is direct report to first-line supervisor; testifies in administrative hearings, civil and criminal proceedings; When appropriate provides assistance to Unarmed Guard I, II positions. This position intervenes when action to safeguard persons or property is appropriate.

Armed Guard job-descriptions are customized to meet the requirements of each assignment, exigent circumstances related thereto, and are subject to client approval.

Minimum Educational, Experiential Requirements: Graduate of an accredited high school or a Certificate of Completion of General Education Development requirements; and meet one of the following experience/education requirements: three (3) years of security experience within past five years; or three (3) years civilian or military work experience; or attendance at an institution of higher learning earning an Associate s Degree, or a minimum of sixty (60) semester hours of college coursework in any field of study; or a graduate of an accredited local, county, state, military or federal law enforcement academy; or any reasonable combination of the foregoing, except when exempted by GSA Federal Protective Services rules or law related to incumbent employees; must be computer literate; knowledge of laws, law enforcement procedures, and use of Deadly Force Policy; must meet legal mandates and training requirements for arrest authority when arrest authority is a requirement; must have or be able to obtain client required clearance; posses a valid state driver s license; completion of state or local sanctioned security guard/officer and firearms training program meeting licensing requirements and issuance; possess a valid concealed carry permit (non-uniformed); meet client and/or EDI required background, medical and psychological examination, illegal drug screening, mandated physical fitness tests, and all training required by the company; must be 21 years of age or older; the candidate for this position must demonstrate maturity, sound judgment, excellent character, work-ethic, job-completion skills, dependability, speak and write English fluently and communicate effectively using tact.

**Citizenship:** United States of America or, where excepted and approved by the Contracting Officer Representative, legal resident aliens with proper INS-issued work permits.

#### SUPERVISOR

**Responsibility and Authority:** The Security Officer Supervisor is uniformed and may be armed or unarmed and functions with or without limited arrest authority; shift-supervisors supervise uniformed and non-uniformed Security Officers assigned to a specific shift at a facility or within a geographic area; shift-

supervisors are responsible for and provide oversight of all aspects of security operations and administrative functions in their assigned area during their tour of duty.

Minimum Educational, Experiential Requirements: Graduate of an accredited high school or a Certificate of Completion of General Education. Must be at least 21 years of age, graduate of a certified civilian, or military law enforcement academy, and/or any combination of training, seminars, experience or education that provides the knowledge required to perform required tasking; knowledge of laws, law enforcement procedures, and use of Deadly Force Policy if armed; three (3) years law enforcement experience and/or one (1) year of security or related supervisory experience; must have or be able to qualify for a secret clearance or an interim secret clearance as required; completion of state or local sanctioned basic security guard/officer and firearms training program if armed, meeting licensing requirements and issuance; successful completion of required background, medical examination, illegal drug screening, training, and all training required by the company. The candidate for this job-category must demonstrate leadership skills, communications skills, maturity, sound judgment, excellent character, work-ethic, job-completion skills and dependability.

General Tasking: leadership, oversight, inspection and support of security personnel and security operations; ensures compliance with task orders, client and EDI policies and procedures; ensure proper use, accountability, and care of Government furnished property; conducts routine self-assessments in compliance with requirements of the Quality Control/Assurance Plan; ensures compliance with applicable provisions of Safety, Health and Environmental Plans; uses delegated authority in disciplinary actions and makes disciplinary recommendations as appropriate; provide deterrence against unauthorized and/illegal activities, including potentially life-threatening activities, protection of information, programs, Government facilities and Government property; ensures the safety and security of client personnel, visitors and property; provides deterrence against the commission of wrongful and unsafe acts; aids in discovery and reporting of security violations; early notice of emergencies, preliminary evaluation, response to, reporting and assurance of appropriate contractor, civil/federal response; makes detention of miscreants when lawful and appropriate; schedules; counsels and disciplines personnel, inspects, spot-trains, up-dates to client/EDI Post Duties, conduct quality assurance compliance program, etc.; Shift Supervisors promote law and order; lead, teach and motivate security personnel; conduct access control functions related to employee, visitor, and guest ingress and egress in controlled environments; provide directions, and informational assistance to employees, visitors and guests, responds per client directives and instructions to emergency situations including, but not limited to: demonstrations; crowds that pose a threat; bomb threats; bombings; civil disturbances; security breaches; fires; explosions; electrical failures; loss of water pressure; chemical and gas leaks; natural disasters; biological, nuclear and chemical threats; medical emergencies; facility alarms (security, fire-alarm, duress, and intrusion detection systems) security violations; remains alert to security risks and exposures, and reports, records, security, medical or other incidents; conducts general observation for fire or other hazardous conditions; secures entrances and exits during periods of an emergency; controls, issues and records visitor passes; maintains duty logs, and records; prepares written reports detailing security related activity and incidents; communicate via two-way radio s and cellular phones; proficient in the use of hand-held firearms and such other lethal and non-lethal equipment as required for task fulfillment; testifies in administrative hearings, civil and criminal proceedings; Shift Supervisors conduct themselves in a courteous and professional manner when interacting with coworkers, civil/federal law enforcement personnel, client employees, visitors and guests. This position intervenes when action to safeguard persons or property is appropriate.

Citizenship: United States of America

#### PROJECT MANAGER

**Responsibility and Authority:** The Project Manager is the senior EDI executive assigned to a security project employing up to 100 security, supervisory and/or support personnel except when a direct report to a General Manager. Personnel may be assigned to a specific physical location or multiple locations within a city, county, state or region. This position is delegated authority to act on behalf of the corporation and is a direct report to the client. The Project Manager is delegated authority and autonomy necessary to fulfill all managerial, administrative, operational and contract responsibilities required for the management of a security project in the fulfillment of scope-of-work mandates, and in meeting EDI policy and procedures requirements. The Project Manager is a direct report to EDI corporate level executive management except when the

position is a direct report to a General Manager who becomes the direct report to the client and corporate.

Minimum Educational, Experiential Requirements: Graduate of an accredited Junior or Community College with a degree in an associated discipline, and/or five (5) years private security experience with two (2) years in a management or supervisory position, and/or a graduate of an accredited local, county, state, military or Federal law enforcement academy with five (5) years law enforcement or security experience with two (2) years in a management or supervisory position.

General Tasking: Provide management, leadership, planning, data and financial analysis, technical guidance and oversight; ensure positive client relationships, responsiveness, satisfaction, partnering, issue resolution and solutions input; ensure effective employee relations, supervisory performance evaluations, and conduct fair and impartial disciplinary actions; ensure operational effectiveness and efficiency, quality assurance, safety, training, employee development, records management, budget and fiscal control, innovation. Exercise sound judgment, critical thinking and analysis; testifies in administrative hearings, civil and criminal proceedings; Specific job-descriptions are customized to meet the requirements of each project, exigent circumstances related thereto, and are subject to client approval.

Citizenship: United States of America

#### 2. MAXIMUM ORDER:

561612: \$250,000 OLM: \$250,000

#### 3. MINIMUM ORDER:

\$2,500.00

#### 4. GEOGRAPHIC COVERAGE:

Domestic Only, 48 contiguous (Licensed in: Alabama, Florida, Georgia, Mississippi, Maryland, New Mexico, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia, Washington, DC.

#### 5. POINT(S) OF PRODUCTION:

Excelsior Defense, Inc. 2660 5th Ave. North Saint Petersburg, FL 33713

#### 6. DISCOUNT FROM LIST PRICES:

Government net prices (discounts already deducted)

## 7. QUANTITY DISCOUNT(S):

N/A

#### 8. PROMPT PAYMENT TERMS:

Net 30. Information for Ordering Offices: Prompt payment terms cannot be negotiated out of the contractual agreement in exchange for other concessions.

#### 9. FOREIGN ITEMS:

N/A

#### 10a. TIME OF DELIVERY:

**Contact Contractor** 

#### 10b. EXPEDITED DELIVERY:

Contact Contractor

#### 10c. OVERNIGHT AND 2-DAY DELIVERY:

**Contact Contractor** 

## 10d. URGENT REQUIREMENTS:

**Contact Contractor** 

## 11. FOB POINT:

Destination

## 12a. ORDERING ADDRESS:

Excelsior Defense, Inc. 2660 5th Ave. North Saint Petersburg, FL 33713

#### 12b. ORDERING PROCEDURES:

For supplies and services, the ordering procedures, information on Blanket Purchase Agreements (BPA's) are found in Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR) 8.405-3.

#### 13. PAYMENT ADDRESS:

Excelsior Defense, Inc. 2660 5th Ave. North Saint Petersburg, FL 33713

## 14. WARRANTY PROVISION:

N/A

#### 15. EXPORT PACKING CHARGES:

N/A

## 16. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF RENTAL, MAINTENANCE, AND REPAIR (IF APPLICABLE): N/A

### 17. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF INSTALLATION (IF APPLICABLE):

N/A

## 18a. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF REPAIR PARTS INDICATING DATE OF PARTS PRICE LISTS AND ANY DISCOUNTS FROM LIST PRICES (IF AVAILABLE):

N/A

## 18b. TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR ANY OTHER SERVICES (IF APPLICABLE):

N/A

## 19. LIST OF SERVICE AND DISTRIBUTION POINTS (IF APPLICABLE):

N/A

## 20. LIST OF PARTICIPATING DEALERS (IF APPLICABLE):

N/A

## 21. PREVENTIVE MAINTENANCE (IF APPLICABLE):

N/A

#### 22a. SPECIAL ATTRIBUTES SUCH AS ENVIRONMENTAL ATTRIBUTES

N/A

## 22b. SECTION 508 COMPLIANCE FOR EIT:

N/A

## 23. UNIQUE ENTITY IDENTIFIER (UEI) NUMBER:

049425098

## 24. NOTIFICATION REGARDING REGISTRATION IN SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT (SAM) DATABASE:

Excelsior Defense, Inc. has an Active Registration in the SAM database.